
CHERRY HILLS VILLAGE 
COLORADO 

2450 E. Quincy Avenue                     Village Center 

Cherry Hills Village, CO  80113                     Telephone 303‐789‐2541 

www.cherryhillsvillage.com                                               FAX 303‐761‐9386 
 

Notice:  Agenda is subject to change. 

If you will need special assistance in order to attend any of the City’s public meetings, please notify the City of Cherry Hills Village at 303‐789‐2541, 48 hours in 

advance. 

 

City Council Agenda 

Tuesday, June 3, 2014 

 

 
6:30 p.m. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

2.  Roll Call of Members 

 

3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Police Department Accreditation 

 

5.  Reports from Members of City Boards and Commissions 

 

6.  Audience Participation Period (limit 5 minutes per speaker) 

 

7.  Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes – May 20, 2014  

 

8.  Items Removed From Consent Agenda 

 

9.  Unfinished Business 

 

10.  New Business 

a.  Public Hearing – Request by St. Mary’s Academy for an Expanded Use Permit to Build a 

Community Center Building 

b.  Council Bill 3, Series 2014; Amending Sections 2‐1‐10, 2‐1‐40, and 2‐1‐50 of the Municipal Code 

Concerning Elections (first reading) 

 

11.  Reports 

a.  Mayor 

  (i)  July 1, 2014 Meeting Quorum 

b.  Members of City Council 

c.  City Manager and Staff 

  (i)  Planning and Zoning Commission Vacancy 

d.  City Attorney 

 

12.  Adjournment 



Draft Draft Draft 

March 20, 2014 
City Council 
 

1 

Minutes of the 
City Council of the City of Cherry Hills Village, Colorado 

Held on Tuesday, March 20, 2014 at 6:30 p.m. 
At the Village Center 

 
The City Council held a study session with Norris Design regarding the Public Works 
Facility Review at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Mayor Doug Tisdale called the regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Doug Tisdale, Councilors Mark Griffin, Russell Stewart, Alex Brown, Scott 
Roswell, Klasina VanderWerf, and Katy Brown were present on silent roll call.  Also 
present were Deputy City Manager and Public Works Director Jay Goldie, City Attorney 
Linda Michow, Commander Pat Weathers, Finance Director Karen Proctor, Community 
Development Director Rob Zuccaro, Street Operations Supervisor Josh English, and 
City Clerk Laura Smith. 
 
Absent:  none 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Bridget Brown, daughter of Councilor K. Brown, led the Council in the pledge of 
allegiance. 
 
UPDATE BY CDOT REGION DIRECTOR TONY DEVITO 
 
CDOT Director Tony DeVito presented CDOT’s budget with a projection to 2040. He 
explained various divisions and projects. He reviewed some options for long term 
funding of street maintenance. 
 
Councilor A. Brown thanked Mr. DeVito for his time. He asked about the Federal 
highway tax that was set to expire next year. 
 
Mr. DeVito replied that taxes would often be continued by resolution by the legislature 
for several cycles before any new changes were proposed. 
 
Councilor K. Brown asked about alternative funding sources. 
 
Mr. DeVito replied that other states had vehicle miles tax programs, but no new tax or 
toll programs suggested so far were popular in Colorado. 
 
Mayor Tisdale noted the roll of public private partnerships with roads in Colorado. 
 
Councilor Griffin asked about potholes on University Boulevard. 



Draft Draft Draft 

March 20, 2014 
City Council 
 

2 

 
Mr. DeVito replied that it had been a tough winter but to let CDOT know and they would 
repair the potholes. 
 
Councilor Griffin explained that he travelled back and forth to Vail most weekends and 
noted that the road had been closed over 60 times this past winter. He indicated that the 
cause was often cars without properly maintained tires and that CDOT neglected to 
regulate passenger vehicles. 
 
Mr. DeVito noted that CDOT had volume and staffing issues but that they still tried to do 
outreach and education programs for mountain driving as much as possible. 
 
Councilor Griffin indicated that magnesium chloride was toxic and corrosive to vehicles, 
bridges and trees. 
 
Mr. DeVito replied that CDOT had used both sand and magnesium chloride to increase 
safety on winter roads and each had its tradeoffs. 
 
Councilor Griffin noted that Colorado had very high vehicle registration fees. 
 
Mr. DeVito replied that registration fees were used to fund bridge maintenance projects 
and safety programs. 
 
Councilor Griffin asked about US 36. 
 
Mr. DeVito explained that parts of the highway were failing and more funding was 
needed. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart asked about CDOT projects near the City for 2014. 
 
Mr. DeVito described projects at Arapahoe Road and I-25, Santa Fe and Alameda, and 
6th Avenue and I-25. 
 
Councilor Roswell asked about the intersection of Belleview Avenue and University 
Boulevard. 
 
Mr. DeVito replied that the final punch work was being completed. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart asked about Belleview Avenue and I-25. 
 
Mr. DeVito replied that CDOT was having conversations about that interchange. 
 
MEMBERS OF CITY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 
There were no reports.  
 



Draft Draft Draft 

March 20, 2014 
City Council 
 

3 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION PERIOD 
 
None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart moved, seconded by Councilor Griffin to approve the following 
items on the Consent Agenda: 
 

a. Approval of Minutes – May 6, 2014  
b. Resolution 5, Series 2014; Concerning the Appointment of Members to 

the Board of Adjustment and Appeals 
c. Resolution 6, Series 2014; Concerning the Appointment of Members to 

the Parks, Trails and Recreation Commission 
d. Resolution 7, Series 2014; Concerning the Appointment of Members to 

the Public Art Commission  
e. Resolution 8, Series 2014; Appointing Ford H. Wheatley as an Alternate 

Municipal Judge for the Cherry Hills Village Municipal Court and 
Approving a Professional Services Agreement for Such Services 

f. Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Englewood for Fleet 
Maintenance and Repair 

g. Contract for Services with PLM Asphalt and Concrete Inc. for the 2014 
Street Improvement Asphalt Replacement Project 

h. Contract for Services with Thoutt Brothers Concrete Contractors Inc. for 
the 2014 Street Improvement Concrete Replacement Project 

 
 The motion carried unanimously. 
 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 
None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Public Hearing (Continued) – Major Event Permit, Floodplain Development Permit, and 
Temporary Wireless Communication Facilities for the BMW Golf Championship 
 
Director Zuccaro explained that the Western Golf Association (WGA) requested review 
of a Major Event Permit to host the 2014 BMW Championship at Cherry Hills Country 
Club from September 1 through 7, 2014. The BMW Championship was a PGA Tour 
event with an expected attendance of up to 27,000 per day on the busiest days. Staging 
for the event was expected to start June 1st with initial deliveries and equipment to off-
site staging areas. Construction and staging on the golf course would take place from 
June 1st through August 31st. This would include construction and placement of multi-
story temporary structures, grandstands, fencing, and installation of various support 
equipment. He described the five proposed support service sites and the proposed 



Draft Draft Draft 

March 20, 2014 
City Council 
 

4 

routes that would be used for attendees and people associated with the event. He noted 
that University Boulevard would be re-striped in order to create a drop-off area for 
buses. He indicated that staff was concerned with attendees parking in the City and 
described the proposed no-parking sign plan. He reviewed the requests associated with 
the major event permit, including a permit to temporarily increase the height of the 
driving range fence from 60 feet to 90 feet for the event. 
 
Director Zuccaro explained that the Planning and Zoning Commission had completed a 
preliminary review in 2013 and had held a public hearing on April 22, 2014. They 
recommended approval with conditions. He noted that all these conditions had been 
met except for outstanding authorization letters regarding Cherry Hills Drive and 3600 
S. Clarkson Street. He indicated that staff recommended approval with these two 
outstanding conditions and two others, that the applicant provide a bond to cover any 
damage to S. Gilpin Street, and that the applicant submit a proposal for an alternative 
construction staging area to replace the proposed uses of 3600 S. Clarkson Street and 
the Ogden Street property. 
 
Mayor Tisdale asked if an alternative staging area would be needed if the applicants 
provided an authorization letter to use 3600 S. Clarkson Street. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that use of 3600 S. Clarkson Street was limited by the 
floodplain so an alternate site would still be required. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart asked about staff’s condition for the applicant’s use of 3600 S. 
Clarkson Street. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that use of 3600 S. Clarkson Street would be limited by the 
floodplain if the applicant chose to use it for limited staging because the City’s Code 
does not allow structures in the floodplain that would affect up or down stream flow 
during a flood event. 
 
Councilor A. Brown expressed concern with the proposed use of light rail and event 
shuttles to transport the majority of attendees to the event because of the long travel 
time from light rail station to the Country Club. He asked if any similar events could be 
examined to determine the actual use of that type of travel situation. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that he had not examined any similar events but noted the 
applicant might be able to better address the question. 
 
Councilor A. Brown asked if the applicant was providing any incentive to its attendees to 
use public transportation. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that to the best of his knowledge the applicant was only 
planning to promote the use of public transportation. He added that public transportation 
information would be included with event tickets and staff had asked that strong 
language indicating no parking in the City be added. 



Draft Draft Draft 

March 20, 2014 
City Council 
 

5 

 
Councilor A. Brown asked if the City’s construction hours and days would apply to the 
Clarkson Street property if it was used for staging. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that the City’s construction hours and days would be applicable 
and that staff had notified the applicant of these hours. 
 
Councilor A. Brown indicated he was pleased to see the proposed no-parking sign plan 
as most of the City’s streets were not normally signed. He asked what basis would be 
used to ticket and tow vehicles that parked on streets that were not signed during the 
event. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that signed streets would be enforced by the Police 
Department, but that unsigned streets could not be enforced. He added that the staff 
had worked with the applicant to have 200 extra signs that could be placed as needed 
during the event. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf asked if RTD would be alerted that the Southmoor and Belleview 
stations may be busier than normal during this event. She also asked if there was a 
contingency plan if there were not enough event shuttles to accommodate the number 
of people arriving at Belleview Station. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that he would defer those questions to the applicant. 
 
Councilor Roswell asked if neighbors of 3600 S. Clarkson Street had been given notice 
that the property might serve as a support service site. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that notice had been posted at the site and letters had been 
mailed to neighbors notifying them of the public hearing being held tonight. 
 
Councilor Roswell asked about the combination of the event with school traffic. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that the applicant’s traffic analysis had considered school traffic 
to some extent and that the applicant had determined that school traffic did not coincide 
with the peak traffic times for the event. He deferred to the applicant to address the 
question further. 
 
Councilor Roswell asked if a plan was in place to advise residents of who to call 
regarding parking issues so that the Police Department did not get inundated. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that an event hotline and the main number for the Country Club 
that would be posted on the City website and in local publications at least a month 
before the event. 
 
Mayor Tisdale added that the numbers would be posted in CIVC (Crier, Internet, 
Villager, and Channel 22). 



Draft Draft Draft 

March 20, 2014 
City Council 
 

6 

 
Councilor Roswell expressed concern with event parking and traffic affecting 
Englewood and the nearby high school and hospital. 
 
Mayor Tisdale suggested that the applicant offer discounts on merchandise as an 
incentive to attendees to take public transportation. 
 
Chris Manley, Executive Committee for the BMW Championship, thanked City Council, 
Director Zuccaro, and Commander Weathers for their time and consideration. He 
addressed several outstanding issues. He explained that the applicant had received the 
revised development agreement and had no comments. They also had no issue with 
the bond to cover the chip seal on South Gilpin Street that the City was requesting. He 
requested that Council remove the condition to provide the last of ten authorization 
letters from the owners of Cherry Hills Drive for the use of that street as a shuttle route. 
He explained that the owner lived in California and the applicant had made repeated 
efforts to contact the owner but had not been successful. He indicated that the applicant 
planned to use Belleview Station instead of 3600 S. Clarkson Street for their staging 
site. 
 
Mr. Manley addressed Council’s concerns with parking by explaining that the majority of 
people who had purchased tickets lived to the south of the City and therefore the 
proposed traffic plan should be a convenient system for attendees to use. He added 
that the event’s shuttles were flexible according to demand. He indicated that the WGA 
had a long experience with organizing events this size. He noted that a bike depot 
would be provided to encourage biking. 
 
Vince Pellegrino, WGA Senior Vice President of Tournaments, thanked Council for their 
time, and echoed Mr. Manley’s thanks to Director Zuccaro and Commander Weathers. 
He explained the mission and history of the WGA and its scholarship program. He gave 
an overview of the tournament. He requested that Council consider reimbursing some of 
the excise tax that the City was collecting to cover the cost the applicant was paying to 
the City for items such as building permits, safety, and security so that more money 
could go towards their scholarships. 
 
Councilor A. Brown noted that encouraging biking could have the unintended 
consequence of further parking issues. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino replied that they were working with a PR firm to ensure that parking and 
traffic restrictions and plans were communicated effectively to everyone involved in the 
event. 
 
Councilor Roswell asked if the applicants were in contact with the schools. 
 
Mr. Manley replied that they were in contact with St. Mary’s, Kent Denver, and Cherry 
Hills Elementary School. He added that the tee times began at 11am, well after morning 
drop-off for schools, and the tournament ended each day after school pick-up times. 



Draft Draft Draft 

March 20, 2014 
City Council 
 

7 

 
Councilor Roswell indicated that the City welcomed the tournament. 
 
Mayor Tisdale opened the Public Hearing at 8:18 p.m. 
 
James Hamit, 3800 S. Ogden Street, noted that he also owned 3750 S. Ogden Street. 
He expressed concerns from himself and his neighbors about the use of the Ogden 
Street property owned by the Country Club as a staging site for the event. He noted 
concerns about strangers in the area, structures in the floodplain, traffic and security. 
 
Hearing no other comments, the Public Hearing was closed at 8:25 p.m. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino indicated that they would not use the Ogden Street or Clarkson Street 
properties for staging. 
 
Councilor Roswell asked about use of the sites for parking. 
 
Mr. Pellegrino replied that the sites would be potentially used for limited storage and 
parking during the tournament. 
 
Director Zuccaro addressed the applicant’s request for reimbursement of excise tax to 
cover costs to the City with a clarification for Council. He explained that in the Major 
Event Section of the Municipal Code, Council had the opportunity to reimburse all or a 
portion of the major event review fee, and that if Council chose to do so this 
reimbursement could be included in the development agreement and therefore 
discussion regarding such reimbursement could be warranted to include in tonight’s 
consideration of the application. He added that reimbursement of other items not 
included in the major event permit review was not provided for by the Code and 
therefore would be discussed separately from the application. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart indicated that the request should be considered separately 
from the application. 
 
Councilor A. Brown reminded Council that they had adopted a Donation Policy which 
stated that Council would not make donations because they had agreed that it was not 
appropriate to donate public tax revenue to charities. He suggested that if Council 
considered the applicant’s request they should also revisit the Donation Policy. 
 
Mayor Tisdale asked City Attorney Michow to speak to the difference between 
reimbursement and donation. 
 
City Attorney Michow indicated that they were different issues and referred to Section 
16-21-70(b) of the Code which gave Council discretion to reimburse review fees for 
major event permits. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

March 20, 2014 
City Council 
 

8 

Councilor K. Brown asked staff if the applicant’s estimate of $10,000 in building permit 
fees was accurate. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that the applicant’s escrow account with the City was $10,000 
but the total permit cost was not yet known. 
 
Mayor Tisdale asked if staff was satisfied with the applicant’s use of Belleview Station 
instead of the Ogden Street and Clarkson Street sites for staging. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied that Belleview Station was likely adequate but staff would still 
request the applicant submit a letter of authorization for use of the site. He added that 
staff was comfortable with verifying this administratively. 
 
Councilor A. Brown asked if staff was concerned with use of a site outside of the City. 
 
Mayor Tisdale replied that staff still needed verification that the needs of the event were 
met by the sites chosen by the applicant, whether those sites were inside or outside of 
the City. 
 
Director Zuccaro added that the Belleview Station site had been identified as a possible 
staging area early on in the process so staff was familiar with the area. He noted that if 
staff felt sufficiency of the area was questionable the issue could be brought back to 
Council for final approval. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart indicated that conditions 1 and 2 outlined by staff had been 
addressed by the applicant at this hearing. 
 
Councilor K. Brown moved, seconded by Councilor Griffin to approve the request by the 
Western Golf Association for Major Event Permit to host the 2014 BMW Championship 
at Cherry Hills Country Club, and the associated requests for a floodplain development 
permit and wireless communications facility approval based on the findings and analysis 
in the May 6, 2014 and May 20, 2014 staff memorandum with the following conditions:  

1. Amendment of Section G of the Major Event Agreement to include a requirement 
that the applicant provide a $20,000 bond to cover any damage to S. Gilpin 
Street as a result of the event, as specified in the May 20, 2014 staff 
memorandum.  

2. Submittal of a proposal for an alternative construction staging area that is 
satisfactory to the City Manager to replace the uses proposed for the 3600 S. 
Clarkson and Ogden Street properties due to the floodplain restrictions identified 
in the May 14, 2014 Brown and Caldwell floodplain analysis. 

 
Councilor A. Brown noted that there was no timeframe given for the applicants to fulfill 
the conditions. He asked if 30 days was sufficient. 
 
Mr. Manley replied that 30 days was sufficient. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

March 20, 2014 
City Council 
 

9 

Mayor Tisdale suggested the motion be amended to add that the conditions would be 
met within 30 days. 
 
Councilors K. Brown and Griffin agreed. 
 
Councilor Roswell asked about vehicle parking on the Ogden Street property during the 
tournament. 
 
Mr. Manley replied that the site would not be for public parking but would be used for 
trailer storage and ancillary vehicles. He indicated that they would work with staff on the 
plan for use of the Ogden Street property. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Councilor Roswell asked when Council would address the applicant’s request for 
reimbursement. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart suggested the Council Retreat. 
 
Councilor K. Brown asked when the total permit fees would be known. 
 
Director Zuccaro replied in approximately a month. 
 
Councilor K. Brown indicated that Council could not adequately address the request 
until the final amount was known. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
None 

 
REPORTS 
 
Members of City Council 
 
Councilor A. Brown reported that he was very happy with Saturday’s paint and 
electronics recycling and shred day. He indicated it was a great service for the 
community and had been a successful event. 
 
Councilor VanderWerf agreed that Spring Clean Up had been a great success and that 
staff had been very helpful. She reported that the Public Art Commission (PAC) annual 
fundraiser would be Sunday, June 1st and that it was about half full. She encouraged 
Councilmembers to RSVP. She reported that the PAC was using the call for entry 
website CaFE to search for a Colorado artist to provide their next loaned sculpture for 
the Village. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

March 20, 2014 
City Council 
 

10

Councilor Roswell had no report. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart agreed Spring Clean Up was a great event. 
 
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie noted that it had been the biggest turnout since 
the City had started the program. 
 
Councilor Griffin agreed Spring Clean Up was wonderful. 
 
Councilor K. Brown suggested that signage be added to the City’s trails during the BMW 
Golf Tournament to help direct those attendees who walked or biked. She also noted 
that staff may need to be vigilant in enforcing the City’s short term rental policy. She 
reported that Quincy Farm Visioning Committee expected to bring its final report to the 
Parks, Trails and Recreation Commission in June and soon after bring it to Council. 
 
Mayor’s Report 
 
Mayor Tisdale reported he had attended DRCOG on May 7th; attended Metro Mayors 
Caucus on May 7th; attended the Denver Union Station grand opening and ribbon 
cutting on May 7th; participated in Cherry Hills Village Elementary School’s bike building 
event on May 12th; attended the South Metro Denver Chamber of Commerce meeting; 
spoke at the dedication ceremony for the Yates Pavilion at Kent Denver; attended a 
ceremony for South Metro Fire Rescue; would serve on the assessment panel for the 
selection of a new fire chief; attended the 18th Judicial District Fraud Seminar on May 
15th; and attended the Arapahoe County Commissioners, Mayors and Managers 
Breakfast last Friday. He indicated the Governor would be at the Joint Public Safety 
Facility tomorrow to sign three bills into law sponsored by Representative Kagan and 
Senator Newell. He noted the Council Retreat would be May 31st. He reported that he 
had received a letter from a resident thanking Officers Gunther and Steele for their help 
in avoiding a scam situation. 
 
City Manager & Staff 
 
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie reported that Spring Clean Up had been very 
successful this year and staff was looking into the possibility of holding the event twice a 
year. He noted that the City had saved money this year because Goodwill had taken all 
the electronics at no cost to a secure facility and they would recycle the items if they 
could not resell them. He noted that the dumpsters would remain at the Village Center 
through May 25th. He reported that the Police Department had assisted Kent Denver 
with emergency preparation; he had received the CIRSA Safety Manager of the Year 
Award; staff was in the process of interviewing applicants for the court clerk position; an 
expanded use permit application for St. Mary’s Academy would come to Council at the 
next meeting; the Police Department had assisted with security for a visit from Speaker 
of the House John Boehner last weekend; and the monthly financial report and 
department reports were included in Council packets. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

March 20, 2014 
City Council 
 

11

Mayor Pro Tem Stewart asked about the nature of St. Mary’s application. 
 
Director Zuccaro clarified that St. Mary’s was applying to construct a new building. 
 
Public Works Department Monthly Report 
 
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie presented his annual department report to City 
Council. He presented the Public Works Department’s mission and vision statements; 
2013 statistics; the responsibilities and projects for the streets division and parks 
division; partnerships with outside organizations; expenditures; ongoing projects; and 
staff training and education. He discussed the new program to track citizen requests for 
service; the new right-of-way program; and the accreditation program. He concluded 
with a review of the department’s strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats. 
 
Councilor Griffin asked about the comparison of the City’s current expenditures on 
parks and trail maintenance versus what the City paid South Suburban before 
exclusion. 
 
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie replied that the City operated at about 50% the 
cost of South Suburban to maintain the parks and trails. 
 
Councilor A. Brown asked about an updated traffic study/count for the City. He noted 
significant backup on Quincy Avenue during peak traffic times. 
 
Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie replied that staff was considering a full traffic study 
in 2015. 
 
Councilor K. Brown suggested that staff explore new ways to build the City’s 
relationship with Denver Water so that the City is notified before trees are cut down 
along the High Line Canal. 
 
Mayor Tisdale thanked Deputy City Manager/Director Goldie for his work and 
presentation. 
 
City Attorney 
 
City Attorney Michow indicated that she would give a legislative update to Council at 
their next meeting. She also noted a Supreme Court decision affecting governmental 
immunity that she would report on at the next meeting. She indicated that it would be 
appropriate for Council to solicit alternate judges through an RFP process in order to 
have an available pool from which to choose in cases where Judge Turre is not able to 
preside, as was the case resulting in tonight’s approval of alternate Judge Wheatley. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Stewart indicated that an RFP for alternate judges was a good idea. 
 



Draft Draft Draft 

March 20, 2014 
City Council 
 

12

ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:36 p.m. 
 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Douglas M. Tisdale, Mayor 
 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Laura Smith, City Clerk 


























































































































































































